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County of Alameda, General Services Agency – Purchasing

RFP No. 900977, Addendum No. 2

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS
to

RFP No. 901723
for

Onsite Fitness Provider
Summary of Q&A Submitted

Networking/Bidders Conferences held on January 17, 2019
	This County of Alameda, General Services Agency (GSA), Questions & Answers (Q&A) Document has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail.  E-mail addresses used are those in the County’s Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Vendor Database or from other sources.  If you have registered or are certified as a SLEB, please ensure that the complete and accurate e-mail address is noted and kept updated in the SLEB Vendor Database.  This Q&A Document will also be posted on the GSA Contracting Opportunities website located at http://www.acgov.org/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/ContractOpportunities.jsp.


Alameda County is committed to reducing environmental impacts across our entire supply chain. 

If printing this document, please print only what you need, print double-sided, and use recycled-content paper.

Responses to Written Questions

Q1) How long has the County been offering fitness and nutrition wellness programs?
A1) The County has been providing a wellness program since 2000.
Q2) What have been the biggest successes and challenges in the past with your wellness programs?
A2) The biggest successes have been consistent and increasing employee participation and program satisfaction along with reported positive behavior change.  Challenges have been with maintaining commitment and enthusiasm for the entire 12 weeks and customizing the online component to allow for a department-based team competition.
Q3) Why are you looking to change your current fitness and nutrition provider?
A3) It is the policy of Alameda County to rebid all contracts after each 5 year term, this has no direct relationship with the current provider.
Q4) Can the County explain what the new vendor needs to provide/deliver/execute that maybe hasn’t happened with the current vendor?
A4) The new vendor will provide and deliver all services detailed within this RFP, this RFP is a modification of the Current County contract.
Q5) What is the annual budget for the onsite fitness services detailed within this RFP?

A5) The County has estimated $320,000 for these services however there is no minimum or maximum dollar value guaranteed.
Q6) Who is the current SLEB contractor for the Onsite Fitness Provider contract?

A6) Currently there is no SLEB on this contract, as the prior SLEB is decertified.
Q7) If a vendor plans to subcontract with a SLEB, Can the County clarify if there is a certain number of months or years a SLEB has to be certified in order to qualify as a subcontractor for this RFP?  If yes, how many months or years do they have to be SLEB certified?

A7) The County does not have a minimum number of months or years a SLEB has to be certified for subcontracting.  The County requirement is that all SLEB partners be certified by the Bid Due Date.
Q8) If a vendor has working partnerships in place with other companies, if any part of the services being delivered to Alameda County are from that partnership, where in the bid should bidders disclose that information?  Can the County confirm if having partners deliver a portion of services is acceptable?
A8) Bidders shall detail within their description of proposed services how the services to the County will be handled.  Yes, it is acceptable to partner for service delivery.
Q9) Who is the current Fitness vendor for the contract if different from the SLEB?

A9) The current incumbent is Young Men’s Christian Association (YMCA).
Q10) Can the County provide a list of SLEB certified vendors that provide fitness and nutrition services?  Please advise how to perform a search to come up with a list of vendors that meet the criteria, as the SLEB Certification unit was unable to successfully help in finding qualified vendors in the category of nutrition consulting and fitness services.
A10) Bidders may utilize the County online Portal to located SLEB Vendors the portal can be accessed directly at http://www.acgov.org/sleb_query_app/gsa/sleb/query/slebmenu.jsp  additionally, Bidders may contact Ratha.Chuon@acgov.org at the Office of Acquisition Policy.
Q11) If RFP’s are due Friday, February 11th and vendor interviews are scheduled for the week of February 14th, Can the County clarify if interviews will be in person at the office or can it be over the phone?  Are travel arrangements taken into consideration?
A11) Vendor interviews will be held the week of February 25, 2019, please see the Revised Calendar of Events within Addendum No. 1.  All bidders Interviews will be in person and a minimum of one member of bidders’ staff must be present.  A one (1) week notice will be issued to all bidders moving to the evaluation phase to allow for travel arrangements.
Q12) Regarding the Active for Life Challenge, can the County define the department based team competitions and wellness challenges desired?  What were the metrics used to track one team against another?  For example, has the County done a digital walking challenge with steps tracked? 
A12) 
The County is not requesting that vendors provide team competitions or wellness challenges in this RFP, please see Addendum No. 2, for the updated specifications.
Q13) What type of challenges have worked best in the past Active for Life Challenge?  What type of challenges would the County like in 2019?  Has there been any challenges in the past that have not worked well for the County’s employee group? 
A13) The County is not requesting that vendors provide team competitions or wellness challenges in this RFP.  Please see Addendum No. 2, for the updated specifications.
Q14) For the Active for Life Challenge, are the fitness classes and group walks part of the Fitness schedule already defined by the 22 classes per week, or is that in addition to the 22 classes per week?  If in addition, how many fitness classes and group walks do you need during this challenge?
A14) Fitness classes are considered separately from Active for Life activities.  Group walks are included in the Active for Life challenge.  Please see Addendum No. 2, for the updated specifications. 
Q15) Regarding the Active for Life Challenges, can the County clarify if the challenges are videos?  Are they digital challenges that employees go through?  Or are vendors expected to deliver onsite challenges to employees?
A15) Vendors are expected to assist the County in delivering onsite challenges to employees.  Please see Addendum No. 2, for the updated specifications. 
Q16) Is the expectation that health enhancement systems will continue to provide platform in 2019 or is the County looking for vendors to bring a platform that can provide the same services, such as tracking challenges, etc., as the Scope of Work does not include a platform.
A16) It is the County preference that the awarded vendor bring forth a new platform.  In 2019, the County will be using the Health Enhancement Systems products, but there is no guarantee that those systems will remain as they are provided through the Health Benefits contract with Kaiser. 
Q17) How has the nutrition education been done in the past?  Have you used a nutrition learning online portal or have nutrition classes being taught onsite or both?  Has the focus been on meal tracking or behavioral change or both? 
A17) In the past the County has offered nutrition learning through the online portal.  The focus was on behavioral change.
Q18) Can the County please clarify the definition of “nutrition education” and what does the County want vendors to deliver?  If in person onsite classes, how many classes does the County need?  Is the nutrition education just tied into the 12-week Active for Life Challenge, or is nutrition education expected to happen annually throughout the year?
A18) The County requires a minimum of 22 fitness classes per week.  Please see Addendum No. 2, for the updated specifications. 
Q19) Can the county explain what has been done in the past with nutrition education relating to the challenge?  What metrics are expected to be used for that piece of work?

A19) During the past challenges, nutrition education occurred through the online portal where weekly wellness newsletters and healthy recipes were provided and points were assigned to eating healthy foods and increased water intake.  Please see Addendum No. 2, for the updated specifications. 
Q20) Can the County clarify what Group Fitness walks are?  What has happened in the past, are they year round and who are they led by? 
A20) Group Fitness Walks are 40-minute guided walks that include cardio, strengthening, and stretching under the guidance of a fitness trainer.  Group fitness walks are specific to the Active for Life Challenge.  The County has hired fitness trainers to lead these walks in the past.  Please see Addendum No. 2, for the updated specifications. 
Q21) Has the County done a digital walking challenge with a portal?  Did employees use walking tracking devices to track steps?
A21) No the County has not done a digital walking challenge in the past. 

Q22) Regarding the online portal, what type of healthy activities is the County expecting to be tracked on the online dashboard during the Active for Life Challenge?  Or year round?
A22) The County is not requiring that vendors provide an online portal or dashboard for the Active for Life Challenge.  Please see Addendum No. 2, for the updated specifications.
Q23) Does the County have wellness or fitness champions throughout the organization?  How are they involved in the programming and Active for Life Challenge currently?
A23) Yes, the County does have wellness champions throughout the organization, they lead Active for Life teams within their departments.
Q24) Can the County confirm that the Active for Life Challenge is once per year starting the third week in May for 12 weeks?
A24) Yes, the County confirms this statement. 
Q25) Can the County provide the locations of the 5 Classes to be added in 2019?  And are all the new classes located in Oakland?

A25) The County is not anticipating all classes to be in Oakland however the classes have not been determined as of yet, so the County wants to have room to add classes if necessary.  The class locations will either be in Oakland, Dublin, or Hayward. 
Q26) Regarding the Active for Life Challenge, how many hourly onsite visits are expected from fitness specialist to do the following at all 9 locations:
· Conduct department-based kick-offs and finales?

· Conduct brown bag presentations on fitness and nutrition topics?

· Support department-based activities including but not limited to: Healthy potlucks, Take the Stairs Day, Office Olympics, Guided Fitness Walks, and Instant Recess? 
A26) Please see Addendum No. 2, for the updated specifications.
Q27) Can the County clarify how vendors are expected to report monthly for ongoing fitness and during the Active for Life Challenge?  Are feedback surveys expected at the end of the month or at the end of every multi-week fitness cycle?
A27) Fitness class and Active for Life program activity should be reported on a monthly basis.  Feedback surveys and accompanying analyses are expected at the end of every multi-week fitness cycle and at the end of the Active for Life 12-week campaign.
Q28) How has the County measured the effectiveness of the fitness and nutrition programs in the past? 
A28) The County has measured these through pre and post participant surveys.
Q29) Page 4 of Bid Form, Item 4.  Key Personnel states:
Bid responses shall include a complete list of all key personnel associated with the RFP.  This list must include all key personnel who will provide services to County Staff.  For each person on the list, the following information shall be included:

(a) The person’s relationship with Bidder, including job title and years of employment with Bidder;

(b) The role that the person will play in connection with the RFP;

(c) Address, telephone, fax numbers, and email address;

(d) Person’s educational background; and 

(e) Person’s relevant experience, certifications, and/or merits.

Can bidders only provide information on person’s professional qualifications, which is more relevant to meeting the requirements for the Scope of Work?
A29) This section is specific to the personnel who will be servicing the County account.  Bidders may include professional qualifications in addition to the details requested above but not alternatively.
Q30) Regarding the Bid Form, can the County clarify where vendors can indicate they are using a partnered company for delivery of some of the required services?
A30) Bidders shall detail within their bid response how the services are being delivered.  The County is not seeking separated cost for partnerships.
Q31) Please clarify the breakdown of the annual cost list on the Excel sheet line item by line item?  In particular, where are the cost for the monthly reporting, end of program reporting, and the ongoing program management cost including quarterly enrollment into programs and communications, etc.  Is that reporting, enrollment and management cost to be put into the per class cost for the 22 weekly classes?
A31) Please see the REVISED BID FORM within Addendum No. 2.
Q32) Regarding the Bid Form, the class quantities don’t match correctly.  Can the County confirm that 924 is the total number of estimated classes per year and not 924 for each program (Zumba, Body Conditioning, Yoga) as it currently appears on the Bid Form?
A32) Please see the REVISED BID FORM within Addendum No. 2.
Q33) On the Bid Form for Fitness and Nutrition Initiatives Support under Contractor Registration Portal (8 hours week/ 20 weeks), Is this the same contract registration portal used for classes or is this a separate contract portal?
A33) The portal referenced on the Bid Form is a separate portal.  This portal would be used for registering employees into classes. 

Q34) On the Bid Form for Fitness and Nutrition Initiatives Support under Fitness Class/Activity Program Communications, there wasn’t an estimated hours listed.  Can the County provide estimations on hours?
A34) Please see the REVISED BID FORM form within Addendum No. 2.     
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